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A.

1 NA Number of users? The total number of current users is less than 100, however, future 

growth was estimated to be a maximum of 500 users.

2 Do you already own the licenses? If so, what Database are they running? (SQL, Postgres, 

etc.,) Also, if so, what OS are they running?

Yes. CWDS owns the licenses for the cloud applications.

3 If you do not own the licenses, will you be purchasing through a specific vendor (Carasoft, 

etc.)?

The CWDS already has procured subscriptions for the licenses.

4 How will the applications be hosted? Will hosting services be needed? No, the applications will not be hosted. The CWDS currently has licenses 

to the cloud applications.

5 Will the contractor be installing the applications? No. The CWDS has already installed the Jira, Confluence, and EazyOne 

BI applications.

6 Will you ne needing infrastructure setup (help setting up servers etc.)? No

7 Do you need installation of the applications? No. The applications are already installed.

8 Describe the actual process that will be supported in Jira. The CWDS intends to use Jira to replace the Pivotal Tracker application 

that is currently being used for tracking user stories and reporting.

9 How long has Pivotal Tracker been in use? Pivotal Tracker has been in use with the CWDS since early 2016.

10 How much data is expected to be migrated (last 6 months, entire data set, number of 

projects/stories, etc.)?

 The CWDS recently completed the data migration from Pivotal Tracker 

to Jira. Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.

11 What data points do you want to bring over - just stories (or board, etc.)? The CWDS recently completed the data migration from Pivotal Tracker 

to Jira. Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.

12 35 2.3 "The Contractor shall prepare Pivotal Tracker data prior to migration" - we will map data to 

Jira, is there any additional data prep needed?

The CWDS recently completed the data migration from Pivotal Tracker 

to Jira. Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.
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13 35 2.7 The Contractor shall develop SQL scripts to migrate attachments and links from Pivotal 

Tracker to JIRA, as required." - Where are the links referring to (Internal/external links)?

The CWDS recently completed the data migration from Pivotal Tracker 

to Jira. Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.

14 Does the Information Services group have preferred software tools skills-set they expect 

the vendor-consultant to posses for the RFQ opportunity?

The CWDS expects the proposed staff to have Jira admin, Eazy BI and 

Confluence expertise, to not only do the work, to perform the tasks 

identified in the statement of work which includes training  State staff in 

this role.

15 Is the RFQ a new opportunity or renewing the proposal? This RFQ is a new opportunity.

16 If not a new RFQ, who is the current vendor? This RFQ is a new opportunity.

17 The deliverables described in Exhibit A, Section 5(B) Detailed tasks generally are not 

detailed enough for constraints to be understood, which makes the scope of potential 

work undeterminable. Can the OSI assist in defining the requested deliverables in a way 

that can help us estimate the potential level of effort and risk in delivering the services at a 

fixed cost? 

The CWDS anticipates that bidders' cost responses will be lower than 

the anticipated budget which shall not exceed $120,000.00. 

18 5 (B) It says in Section 5(B) that each task is defined "as a specific and measurable outline of 

work to be performed." What is the measure or criteria for success for each of the specific 

tasks outlined?

The statement was modified in Addendum 1.

19 What are all the workflows that the customer wants planned and implemented? What are 

all the data fields that the customer wants planned and implemented? What are all the 

reports that the customer wants in eazyBI?

This information will be determined with the expertise and 

recommendation of vendor's proposed staff, taking into account the 

business needs of each service team.

20 How many users will be using the configurations that are covered by this engagement? It is expected that all staff within CWDS will be using Jira.

21 How many issues have been created per year or per month in PivotalTracker by the current 

team? Is this team smaller or bigger than the team that will be doing the work in Jira?

There are very few issues, if any, are reported on a monthly basis. There 

are multiple CWDS service teams that are using with Pivotal Tracker. It 

is expected that all CWDS service teams will be using Jira.

22 Does this Jira system already exist and is it installed? Or will the bidder be responsible for 

that?

The JIRA application has already been installed by the CWDS.
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23 If the Jira system already exists, what are the versions of the application, what add-ons are 

installed, and what are their versions?

These are all on the cloud, so current versions.

24 Jira is a tool which is designed to be used with add-ons for some custom functionality. If 

additional add-ons (plugins) are required to achieve the functionality that the State wants, 

will the State be able to purchase those? Would the state be willing to consider purchasing 

these add-ons when explained the ROI? Or has the state already considered which add-ons 

it needs to purchase?

Per this agreement, the CWDS will not purchase any add-ons. However, 

after the agreement has been awarded, the State is open to better 

understand other features that it has not already considered. 

25 Does the current Jira system have enough power and resources to handle the significant 

increase in complexity that these customizations may provide? If the state decides that 

they need to upgrade to Jira Data Center, is the State prepared to do that during this 

performance period?

Based on the CWDS' experience with Jira, it is not anticipated that 

upgrades will be needed.

26 Task 1.1 "The Contractor shall work with the project and impacted stakeholders to fully assess the 

current business processes, workflows, tools, pain points, and desired improvements to 

current Agile Management Tracker Tool and associated processes." Please define "desired 

improvements". What is the measureable acceptance or success criteria for this?

Completion of the tasks as detailed in the statement of work.

27 The RFQ refers to a "Agile Management Tracker Tool." Is this a specific piece of software 

other than Jira?

The current tool being used by CWDS is Pivotal Tracker. However, with 

data migration having been recently completed, this will be changed in 

an addendum.
28 For each team that would be working in the new Jira system, what are the workflows for 

their work, including the different types of work, each types' status progression, any 

business logic that needs to be applied at each transition between statuses, and any pieces 

of information that needs to be captured or calculated at each status transition?

The workflows for each of the service teams varies depending on their 

business needs. 

29 For each team that would be working in the new Jira system, what are their current pain 

points with their current tool?

The CWDS expects that its service teams will be able to utilize all the 

features and functionalities of Jira in order to enable them to maximize 

their ability to track workload and provide reporting to the project.
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30 For each team that would be working in the new Jira system, what are their current pain 

points with their current methodology of how they do their work (in terms of process, not 

about their current tool)?

It varies by each service team.  It is anticipated that migration to Jira 

would provide standardization to the way the service teams conduct 

their work

31 The potential scope of "fully assess the current business processes, workflows, tools, pain 

points, and desired improvements to current Agile Management Tracker Tool and 

associated processes" depends significantly on the amount of people and types of work 

that are desired to be tracked in the system. For how many users is it desired to track 

work? What is the measurable acceptance or success criteria for this?

This task has been completed by State staff and will be removed in an 

addendum. The total number of current users is less than 100, however, 

future growth was estimated to be a maximum of 500 users.

32 What are the job titles of the users that want to track work, in general (example: project 

managers, developers, quality assurance, etc.)?

All levels: Executives, PMO, oversight, Legislature, Agency, stakeholders, 

etc.

33 Please provide any documentation about the current workflows, tools, pain points, and 

desired improvements.

This information will be reviewed/discussed with the vendor's proposed 

staff once the staff is onboard.

34 What is planned to be tracked via the solution, especially JIRA and eazyBI? In general, as with any project, progress and timelines will be tracked. 

35 What is the specific work product(s) that CWDS wants to track with Jira?  All service teams' progress, work and, requirements are being met.

36 What specific information and types of information is desired to be tracked in Jira that isn't 

right now?

Progress at a portfolio level.

37 Does CWDS want to track in Jira, the development of web-based tools for the rest of 

CWDS?

Yes, it is anticipated that all service teams on the project will use Jira.

38 Does CWDS want to track any actual Child Welfare cases inside of Jira? No

39 Is this referring to data migration from only Pivotal Tracker? What version exactly of Pivotal 

Tracker is in use?

Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.  

40 How many records (issues) would be migrated if the migration was done now? Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.  

41  What kind of downtime is acceptable to the business during migration? Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.  
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42 What kind of user authentication is used in Pivotal Tracker and any existing Atlassian JIRA 

applications? Are usernames the same?

This information will be provided when the vendor is onboard.

43 Please confirm current versions of JIRA and Confluence, and if Server or Data Center is 

being used.

These are all on the cloud, so current versions.

44 Do you have people who can handle the IT needs of installing and maintaining the server 

product?

The CWDS is using the cloud applications. However, the CWDS  has IT 

staff that are available to provide IT support.

45 What user tier would they be on? The CWDS will have Admins that will provide support and maintenance 

of the application. 
46 How many teams would be in JIRA? Who are these teams, is it the "vendors" they mention 

that are using Agile development or is it internal staff? Both?

It is anticipated that all service teams will use Jira. Services teams may 

be made up of both State staff, vendors, or combination of both.

47 Do they anticipate needing different permission schemes for internal/external users? Yes

48 Task 3.1 What is the "knowledge" that would need to be transferred? The expectation is that a State staff will "shadow" the vendor's 

proposed staff so their knowledge of Jira can be transferred. The end 

result will be that State will be able to fully support Jira.

49 Task 3.1 How many people would receive one-on-one training? 1-1 training would be for the Admin (1-2 staff members).  Training for 

users would be for the CWDS service teams.

50 Task 3.1 What is the measurable acceptance or success criteria for this? State staff is comfortable and have the knowledge and skills to conduct 

admin tasks in Jira.

51 Task 3.1 Can this shadowing and one-on-one training be completed remotely via screen share? No.  The project has expectation that all staff are co-located.  This is the 

same expectation of this role.

52 Task 3.1 Will users the State wants to be trained in eazyBI already be fluent in the MDX 

scripting/coding language required for extensive customization of eazyBI reports?

Most likely not. PMO would likely be the users of Eazy BI and would 

need to be trained on the use of this tool.

53 Task 3.1 What time limits can be put on this? The total number of hours that the vendor is expected to complete the 

tasks in the statement of work is 1,000 hours.
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54 Task 3.1 Can the state request unlimited training or is there a limit? The CWDS does not have a limit on the amount of training. However, 

including the costs for training, the total agreement must not exceed 

the budget threshold of $120,000.00.

55 Task 3.2 Does this mean that the State wants to configure doing configurations or to continue using 

it?

Task 3.2 is asking for documentation/user guides. The State 

understands that user guides can already be accessed from  Atlassian, 

but will most likely  need to be updated for CWDS use. 

56 Task 3.2 What is the measurable acceptance or success criteria for this? PMO will review and determine if documentation meets the needs of 

the CWDS users.

57 Task 3.2 Will users the State wants to be trained in eazyBI already be fluent in the MDX 

scripting/coding language required for extensive customization of eazyBI reports?

Most likely not. PMO would likely be the users of Eazy BI and would 

need to be trained on the use of this tool.

58 Task 3.2 "As requested by the state" - is there any limitation to this in terms of time or 

requirements?

Responding to requests by the State should be made by the vendor 

within a reasonable amount of time.

59 Task 3.3 What specific administrator knowledge and skills should be covered? The vendor is expected to provide sufficient knowledge to the State so 

that State staff can be the long term administrator of this system.

60 Task 3.3 What is the measurable acceptance or success criteria for this? State staff is comfortable and have the knowledge and skills to 

configure, support and/or maintain the system/tool.

61 Task 3.3 Will users the State wants to be trained in eazyBI already be fluent in the MDX 

scripting/coding language required for extensive customization of eazyBI reports?

Most likely not. PMO would likely be the users of Eazy BI and would 

need to be trained on the use of this tool.

62 Task 3.3 "As requested by the state" - is there any limitation to this in terms of time or 

requirements?

No, as per term of the contract.

63 Task 3.4 What specific functions should be covered by this training? All admin functions of the systems and as identified/requested by the 

State.

64 Task 3.4 Will users the State wants to be trained in eazyBI already be fluent in the MDX 

scripting/coding language required for extensive customization of eazyBI reports?

Most likely not. PMO would likely be the users of Eazy BI and would 

need to be trained on the use of this tool.

65 Task 3.4 What is the measurable acceptance or success criteria for this? All admin functions of the systems and as identified/requested by the 

State.
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66 Task 3.4 "As requested by the state" - is there any limitation to this in terms of time or 

requirements?

No, as per term of the contract.

67 Task 3.5 What specific functions should be covered by this training? All admin functions of the systems and as identified/requested by the 

State.

68 Task 3.5 Will users the State wants to be trained in eazyBI already be fluent in the MDX 

scripting/coding language required for extensive customization of eazyBI reports?

Most likely not. PMO would likely be the users of Eazy BI and would 

need to be trained on the use of this tool.

69 Task 3.5 What is the measurable acceptance or success criteria for this? State staff is comfortable and have the knowledge and skills to 

configure, support and/or maintain the system/tool.

70 Task 3.5 "As requested by the state" - is there any limitation to this in terms of time or 

requirements?

Responding to requests by the State should be made by the vendor 

within a reasonable amount of time.

71 Task 3.5 What do you mean by "custom reporting" exactly? Do you include custom MDX members? 

Do you include custom JavaScript outputs?

Creating reports that are on "standard" or out of the box.

72 What reporting metrics are needed? why do they think they need eazyBI? What technical 

staff do they have on hand to update and run these reports?

This is still to be determined.

73 please elaborate on where they are in this process and if this project is to facilitate this 

work described here or if it is the outcome?

The CWDS is using the cloud applications. Data migration from Pivotal 

Tracker to Jira has been completed and will be removed in an 

addendum. The CWDS expects a vendor to provide staff that are 

experienced and knowledgeable in Jira to provide support and training, 

with the eventual outcome that the CWDS will be able to support the 

application and train its users.

74 Are there any location requirements for the specific staff? The vendor is required to perform all services under this Agreement 

onsite at the CWDS office or, with state’s prior approval, remotely at 

another location. The CWDS office is located at 2870 Gateway Oaks 

Drive, Sacramento, CA 95833.

75 Are there any citizenship requirements for the specific staff? No. However, prior to accessing personal confidential information, the 

staff are required to submit to fingerprinting and background check.
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76 Will staff be able to access the system remotely? The vendor is required to perform all services under this Agreement 

onsite at the CWDS office or, with State’s prior approval, remotely at 

another location. 

77 Can the background checks described in Exhibit A, Section 12 be performed on our staff of 

knowledge experts that reside out of the United States?

No

78 Will CWDS or other State staff be responsible for maintaining backups of work product in 

progress during the performance period? To be specific, will a server and database 

management team be responsible for the operation of backup and restore functionality on 

the applications?

No, the CWDS is using the cloud application.

79 Attachment 

3, Cost 

Worksheet

In ATTACHMENT 3 COST WORKSHEET, it states that “* Total Number of Hours cannot 

exceed 1,000, however, the Bidder can propose as many staff as required to perform 

services.” Is CWDS willing to use these services on a full-time basis until the 1,000 hours 

have been completed or is it the intention of CWDS to utilize the resource(s) as needed 

with flexibility on when the project requires these services?

Payment to the vendor will be made on a time and materials basis for 

the actual work performed for this agreement, however, it is 

anticipated that the vendor's staff will perform services on a full-time 

basis.

80 What is the existing project management tool being used? Wiki being used? Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.  

81 Is there a way to share a readout of the amount of content to be migrated? Number of 

projects? Number of issues? Number and size of attachments.

Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.  

82 Is there a schedule for completion? Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.  

83 What is the definition of "Set-up". Do you already have the products installed in your DC or 

AWS environment or would you need assistance with that as well?

Data migration is no longer needed and will be removed in an 

addendum.  
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84 This RFQ does not specifically ask for any proposal to be made. The work is outlined and 

the budget is set. It reads almost as a "Yes we can" or "No we can't". Can you let me know 

if there is any specific deliverable required to be accepted as the vendor for this project?

The CWDS expects the vendor to propose expert staff that can provide 

Jira administration and support.  The proposed staff will also be 

expected to allow a State staff to shadow them for training and 

knowledge transfer so the State can eventually maintain and support 

Jira. The proposed staff will also be asked to provide training 

documentation (user guides, quick tips, etc.) for the users.  The CWDS 

also expects that the proposed staff are familiar and experienced in 

using Confluence and Eazy BI, can recommend best practices for usage 

of Confluence, and show the State staff how to use and create custom 

reports from EazyBI.
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B. 

1 Cover page "Bidder offers and agrees if this response is accepted within 45 calendar days following the 

date the response is due to furnish all the items upon which prices are quoted, at the 

prices set opposite each item, delivered at the designated point(s) by the method of 

delivery and within the times specified and subject to the attached CWS-NS General 

Provisions – Information Technology." Does this mean that if you accept our bid, you 

consider it a binding contract at that time?

The statement means that the bid, submitted by the vendor, is valid for 

45 calendar days after the due date for the bids. If it is determined that 

the vendor's bid is selected for award after evaluation of all the bids 

received by the bid due date,  then a contract will issued to the vendor.

Acquisition and Contracting Services Division (ACSD)
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